Danville National Cemetery was established in 1866 on 3.5 acres adjacent to Greenhill Cemetery. Almost all burials were Union prisoners who died in the Danville military prison. According to an 1868 army inspection report, the cemetery contained 1,312 interments—only 147 were unknown.

In 1873, the cemetery land was formally deeded to the United States by the City of Danville and resident Thomas D. Stokes. The following year, the federal government built a stone superintendent’s lodge and enclosed the cemetery with a stone wall. A central flagstaff and gun monument were installed before 1892. The existing Dutch Colonial Revival-style lodge was built in 1928 to replace the original.

Cemetery Superintendent

By law, the secretary of war appointed a “meritorious and trustworthy” superintendent to manage the cemetery. To qualify for the position, the individual had to have been an enlisted man disabled in service. These restrictions were loosened in 1872 to allow any man honorably discharged from U.S. service to serve as a cemetery superintendent.

This employment was one way the federal government assisted injured veterans who faced an uncertain future after the Civil War. Many lived with their families in the lodges. Francis O’Donohoe, formerly a sergeant in the 5th New York Infantry, was appointed the first superintendent here.